Public Document Pack

Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee

Thursday, 11th December, 2014
at 5.30 pm

Council Chamber - Civic Centre

This meeting is open to the public
Members

Councillor Moulton (Chair)
Councillor Hannides (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Coombs

Councillor Fitzhenry

Councillor Keogh

Councillor Morrell

Councillor Dr Paffey

Councillor Stevens

Councillor Thorpe

Conservative Vacancy

Appointed Members

Mrs U Topp, (Roman Catholic Church)
Revd. J Williams, The Church of England
(Portsmouth and Winchester Dioceses)
Vacancies
e Primary Parent Governor Representative;
and
e Secondary Parent Governor Representative

Contacts

Sharon Pearson

Democratic Support Officer

Tel. 023 8083 4597

Email: sharon.pearson@southampton.gov.uk

Suki Sitaram

Assistant Chief Executive

Tel: 023 8083 2060

Email: suki.sitaram@southampton.gov.uk




PUBLIC INFORMATION

Role of Overview and Scrutiny
Overview and Scrutiny includes the
following three functions:

e Holding the Executive to account by
questioning and evaluating the
Executive’s actions, both before and
after decisions taken.

e Developing and reviewing Council
policies, including the Policy
Framework and Budget Strategy.

e Making reports and recommendations
on any aspect of Council business
and other matters that affect the City
and its citizens.

Overview and Scrutiny can ask the
Executive to reconsider a decision, but
they do not have the power to change
the decision themselves.

Overview and Scrutiny Management
Committee

The Overview and Scrutiny Management
Committee holds the Executive to
account, exercises the call-in process,
and sets and monitors standards for
scrutiny. It formulates a programme of
scrutiny inquiries and appoints Scrutiny
Panels to undertake them. Members of
the Executive cannot serve on this
Committee.

Southampton City Council’s Priorities:

e Jobs for local people

e Prevention and early intervention
e Protecting vulnerable people

e Affordable housing

e Services for all

e City pride

e A sustainable Council

Smoking Policy

The Council operates a no-smoking policy in all
civic buildings.

Mobile Telephones:- Please switch your mobile
telephones to silent whilst in the meeting

Use of Social Media:- If, in the Chair’s opinion,
a person filming or recording a meeting or taking
photographs is interrupting proceedings or
causing a disturbance, under the Council’s
Standing Orders the person can be ordered to
stop their activity, or to leave the meeting

Fire Procedure

In the event of a fire or other emergency a
continuous alarm will sound and you will be
advised by Council officers what action to take.

Access

Access is available for disabled people. Please
contact the Democratic Support Officer who will
help to make any necessary arrangements.

Dates of Meetings: Municipal Year 2014/15

2014 2015
12 June 15 January
10 July 12 February
14 August 12 March
11 September 16 April
16 October
13 November
11 December




CONDUCT OF MEETING

TERMS OF REFERENCE BUSINESS TO BE DISCUSSED
The general role and terms of reference for  Only those items listed on the attached
the Overview and Scrutiny Management agenda may be considered at this meeting.

Committee, together with those for all
Scrutiny Panels, are set out in Part 2
(Article 6) of the Council’'s Constitution, and
their particular roles are set out in Part 4
(Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules —
paragraph 5) of the Constitution.

RULES OF PROCEDURE QUORUM
The meeting is governed by the Council The minimum number of appointed Members
Procedure Rules and the Overview and required to be in attendance to hold the

Scrutiny Procedure Rules as set out in Part meeting is 4.
4 of the Constitution.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

Members are required to disclose, in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct, both
the existence and nature of any “Disclosable Pecuniary Interest” or “Other Interest” they
may have in relation to matters for consideration on this Agenda.

DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS

A Member must regard himself or herself as having a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any
matter that they or their spouse, partner, a person they are living with as husband or wife, or
a person with whom they are living as if they were a civil partner in relation to:

(i) Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain.
(ii) Sponsorship:
Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from Southampton City
Council) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any expense incurred by
you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your election expenses. This includes
any payment or financial benefit from a trade union within the meaning of the Trade Union
and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992.
(iif) Any contract which is made between you / your spouse etc (or a body in which the you /
your spouse etc has a beneficial interest) and Southampton City Council under which goods
or services are to be provided or works are to be executed, and which has not been fully
discharged.
(iv) Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of Southampton.
(v) Any license (held alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of Southampton
for a month or longer.
(vi) Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) the landlord is Southampton City Council and
the tenant is a body in which you / your spouse etc has a beneficial interests.
(vii) Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where that body (to your knowledge) has a
place of business or land in the area of Southampton, and either:
a) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total
issued share capital of that body, or
b) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal value of
the shares of any one class in which you / your spouse etc has a beneficial interest
that exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class.



Other Interests

A Member must regard himself or herself as having an, ‘Other Interest’ in any membership

of, or occupation of a position of general control or management in:

Any body to which they have been appointed or nominated by Southampton City Council

Any public authority or body exercising functions of a public nature

Any body directed to charitable purposes

Any body whose principal purpose includes the influence of public opinion or policy

Principles of Decision Making

All decisions of the Council will be made in accordance with the following principles:-

proportionality (i.e. the action must be proportionate to the desired outcome);
due consultation and the taking of professional advice from officers;

respect for human rights;

a presumption in favour of openness, accountability and transparency;
setting out what options have been considered;

setting out reasons for the decision; and

clarity of aims and desired outcomes.

In exercising discretion, the decision maker must:

understand the law that regulates the decision making power and gives effect to it. The
decision-maker must direct itself properly in law;

take into account all relevant matters (those matters which the law requires the authority
as a matter of legal obligation to take into account);

leave out of account irrelevant considerations;

act for a proper purpose, exercising its powers for the public good;

not reach a decision which no authority acting reasonably could reach, (also known as
the “rationality” or “taking leave of your senses” principle);

comply with the rule that local government finance is to be conducted on an annual basis.
Save to the extent authorised by Parliament, ‘live now, pay later and forward funding are
unlawful; and

act with procedural propriety in accordance with the rules of fairness.



Agendas and papers are now available online via the Council’s Website

1 APOLOGIES AND CHANGES IN PANEL MEMBERSHIP (IF ANY)

To note any changes in membership of the Panel made in accordance with Council
Procedure Rule 4.3.

2 DISCLOSURE OF PERSONAL AND PECUNIARY INTERESTS

In accordance with the Localism Act 2011, and the Council’'s Code of Conduct,
Members to disclose any personal or pecuniary interests in any matter included on the
agenda for this meeting.

NOTE: Members are reminded that, where applicable, they must complete the
appropriate form recording details of any such interests and hand it to the Democratic
Support Officer.

3 < DECLARATIONS OF SCRUTINY INTEREST

Members are invited to declare any prior participation in any decision taken by a
Committee, Sub-Committee, or Panel of the Council on the agenda and being
scrutinised at this meeting.

4 DECLARATION OF PARTY POLITICAL WHIP

Members are invited to declare the application of any party political whip on any matter
on the agenda and being scrutinised at this meeting.

5 STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIR

6 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (INCLUDING MATTERS ARISING)
(Pages 1 -4)

To approve and sign as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 13th
November 2014 and to deal with any matters arising, attached.

7 LOCAL PLAN REVIEW
(Pages 5 - 10)

Report of the Leader of the Council outlining the process to be followed in reviewing
the Council’s Local Plan, attached.

8 THORNHILL DISTRICT HEATING SCHEME
(Pages 11 - 38)

Report of the Assistant Chief Executive outlining detailed proposals for the
development and implementation of the Thornhill District Heating Scheme, attached.



9 MONITORING SCRUTINY RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE EXECUTIVE
(Pages 39 - 44)

Report of the Assistant Chief Executive detailing the actions of the Executive and
monitoring progress of the recommendations of the Committee, attached.

WEDNESDAY, 3 DECEMBER 2014 HEAD OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC
SERVICES



Agenda ltem 6

SOUTHAMPTON CITY COUNCIL
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 13 NOVEMBER 2014

Present: Councillors Moulton (Chair), Hannides (Vice-Chair), Coombs, Fitzhenry,

Keogh, Morrell, Stevens and Thorpe

Also in Attendance: Cabinet Member for Resources and Leisure —

27.

28.

29.

Councillor Barnes-Andrews
Cabinet Member for Communities — Councillor Kaur

APOLOGIES AND CHANGES IN PANEL MEMBERSHIP (IF ANY)

The Committee noted the apologies of Councillor Dr Paffey, Revd Williams and Mrs
Topp.

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (INCLUDING MATTERS ARISING)

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Committee Meeting held on 16 October 2014 be
approved and signed as a correct record.

Matters Arising

Minute 24 — Strengthening Political Scrutiny of Children and Families

The Committee noted that following the agreement to establish the Children and
Families Scrutiny Panel, terms of reference would be produced and presented to the
Overview and Scrutiny Committee Meeting scheduled for 4™ December 2014 and the
new Panel would commence in the New Year.

FORWARD PLAN

The Committee considered the report of the Assistant Chief Executive detailing the
items requested for discussion from the current Forward Plan.

Mrs MacGillivray (Friends of Cobbett Road Library) was present and with the consent of
the Chair addressed the meeting.

RESOLVED:-

(i) that on consideration of the briefing paper relating to “To Extend the Waste
Disposal Contract with Veolia until 2030” the Committee recommended that a
briefing note be circulated, outlining the substantial modifications the Council’s
Ethical Procurement Policy had made since it had been introduced.

(i)  that on consideration of the briefing paper relating to “General Fund Revenue
Budget 2015/16 to 2017/18” the Committee recommended:-

a) the Cabinet Member for Resources and Leisure be requested to consider
the impact of the proposed £1m reduction in agency spend, overtime and

-12 -
Page 1



vacancy management in order to determine whether it should be located
in the service reduction column rather than the efficiency column of the
budget papers;

b) officers be requested to circulate details of the Council’'s expenditure on
outside consultants for 2014/15 to the Committee;

c) officers be requested to circulate a briefing note clarifying the Council’s
position on highways expenditure to the Committee; and

d) officers be requested to clarify whether the Street lighting PFI contract
had required support from the Risk Fund.

(i)  that on consideration of the briefing paper relating to “The Future Transformation
of the Southampton Library Service” the Committee recommended:-

a) the Cabinet Member for Resources and Leisure be requested to consider
how the Estate Regeneration Programme could be utilised to help support
and transform the Library Service;

b) the Cabinet Member for Resources and Leisure be requested to consider
re-wording the recommendations within the Cabinet Report by removing
the reference to a preferred option and broadening the approach to
ensure that all options were considered;

c) the Cabinet Member for Resources and Leisure be requested to consider
how qualitative information could be factored into the decision making
process;

d) when consulting on the future of the Library Service, the Cabinet Member
for Resources and Leisure be requested to consider opportunities for
shared services, collaboration with other partners and alternative delivery
models; and

e) officers be requested to ensure that potential alternative providers of
Library Services, including businesses who might benefit from the library
footfall, were informed of the Council’s consultation process on “The
Future Transformation of the Southampton Library Service”.

(iv)  that on consideration of the briefing paper relating to “Safe City and Youth
Justice Strategies 2014-2017” the Committee recommended:-

a) officers be requested to circulate information identifying how Southampton
compared with its statistical neighbours in relation to the percentage of
young people involved with the Youth Offending Service who were NEET
(Not in full-time Education, Employment or Training); and

b) officers be requested to circulate a list of Southampton based
organisations that had received grant funding from the Police and Crime
Commissioner for Hampshire and the Isle of Wight to the Committee.

-13 -
Page 2



30.

MONITORING SCRUTINY RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE EXECUTIVE

The Committee received and noted the report of the Assistant Chief Executive detailing
the actions of the Executive and monitoring progress of the recommendations of the

Committee.

-14 -
Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



Agenda ltem 7

DECISION-MAKER: OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE
SUBJECT: LOCAL PLAN REVIEW
DATE OF DECISION: 11™ DECEMBER 2014
REPORT OF: LEADER OF THE COUNCIL
CONTACT DETAILS
AUTHOR: Name: | Graham Tuck Tel: 023 8083 4602

E-mail: graham.tuck@southampton.gov.uk

Director Name: | Stuart Love Tel: | 023 8091 7713
E-mail: Stuart.love@southampton.gov.uk

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY
None
BRIEF SUMMARY

The purpose of this paper is to give the Overview and Scrutiny Committee an early
opportunity to comment on the scope and approach of the Local Plan review. The
Plan will look to 2036 and be consistent with the PUSH and LEP strategies for major
economic growth focussed on the cities. It will be used to consider planning
applications and to guide development. It will aim to create a distinctive place,
manage transport, flood risk and energy, protect heritage and the environment and
identify development sites.

The same issues were discussed at a Members’ Seminar on 1 December 2014.
RECOMMENDATIONS:

(1) That the Committee discuss with the Leader the scope and approach
of the Local Plan review.

REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS

1. At the request of the Chair of the Committee.
ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED
2. None

DETAIL (Including consultation carried out)

3. The review of the city wide Local Plan enables the Council, working with its
partners, to set a vision for the type of place it wants the city to be in the short,
medium and long term to 2036. The Plan will provide a spatial strategy for
the use of land. It will be the statutory Plan against which planning
applications are determined.

4, The Local Plan will contribute to the delivery of the:

e Solent LEP and PUSH Strategies, which will promote major economic
and housing growth across South Hampshire, focussed on the Cities
first.

e Southampton Connect Plan (2015 — 2025) and the City Council
Strategy (2014 — 17).

9 { " Page 5



The priorities in the City Council’s Strategy are mutually reinforcing. For
example, promoting jobs will benefit people’s health; delivering affordable
housing and city pride will create the conditions for economic growth and
jobs. The Local Plan provides an opportunity to reinforce these linkages to
maintain and enhance the city as a successful and distinctive place, as set
out in the following table.

Council Strategy
Priority:

How the Local Plan will help:

Jobs for local
people

Attracting new economic investment by creating
planning certainty, identifying sites and the
infrastructure required, and securing training
measures.

Prevention and
early intervention

Improving health by maintaining and enhancing
open spaces, promoting active travel, job
opportunities, and independent living with a mix of
appropriate housing.

Good quality and
affordable housing

Identifying development sites to increase the overall
supply of housing, guiding the design, mix and type
of housing, and securing a proportion of affordable
housing.

Services for All

Managing the demand for transport infrastructure,
and maintaining a network of local centres.

City pride

A distinctive well designed city.

All

Meeting the national statutory environmental and
other policy requirements which will enable the Plan
to be adopted and so deliver the priorities above.

The Local Plan will be examined by an independent Inspector so has to:

e Conform to the national planning policy framework;
e Result from co-operation with neighbouring Councils and statutory

agencies;

e Be based on evidence and consultation with residents and

businesses.

The key issues the Plan will need to address are anticipated to be as follows.
Some of the details may be addressed through Supplementary Planning

Documents:

. Economic Development / City Centre Growth

There will be a need for major office, retail and leisure development in the
city centre; to protect key industrial areas; support the Port; and secure
training measures from developments.

. Housing Development

The city is planning for an additional 10,175 dwellings to 2026. A PUSH
assessment indicates a continuing need for major residential development to
2036. There will be a need for further major high density residential

development to be delivered in the city centre, Itchen Riverside Quarter,

Page 6




Estates Regeneration areas, district centres / major transport corridors, and
on a range of other key sites.

The Plan will manage the need for affordable and family housing; houses in
multiple occupation; and the needs of students, older / disabled people, and
travellers.

. Education / Health

The need for further school provision and the future use of the city’s hospital
sites will be considered. Health objectives will be supported by the approach
to open space, active travel, employment, and housing.

. Local Facilities

There is a need to maintain a range of town, district and local centres; and to
consider how to manage the change between different types of shops
(including pubs, betting / pay day loan shops, and fast food takeaways).

. Open Spaces

A network of open spaces needs to be protected to achieve a range of
recreational, health, and environmental benefits; and to meet the needs of a
growing population. Some (carefully controlled) flexibility may be needed
where there are strong regeneration benefits.

. Transport

There is a need to continue to achieve a shift away from car use towards
public transport, walking and cycling where possible to reduce congestion.
This will support economic and housing growth, and meet environmental /
health objectives.

. Design

The aim is to create a distinctive sense of place with a high quality
relationship between streets, spaces, the waterfront, development and
heritage. There is a need to promote appropriate tall buildings; and manage
air quality, noise and other pollution, community safety and residential
amenity. The relationship with neighbourhood plans needs to be considered.
. Energy / Water / Flood Risk / Biodiversity

There is a need to promote energy / water efficiency and low carbon energy;
to protect biodiversity; and start to implement a strategic shoreline flood
defence.

. Infrastructure

The Plan will need to identify key infrastructure projects, and manage
developer contributions.

The key sites the Plan will need to address are as follows:

. City Centre Sites

The City Centre Action Plan will be incorporated into the new Local Plan and
updated where necessary. It sets out the quarters, key links and
development sites (eg Watermark WestQuay; Royal Pier Waterfront;
Station Quarter; Chapel Riverside; Fruit and Vegetable Market, Bargate;
Ocean Village; Western Gateway / West Quay Retail Park).

. Other Key Sites
Page 7



Site

Use

Notes

Itchen Riverside Quarter

Marine and other
employment; residential

New policy

Centenary Quay Residential, retail / Continue existing policy
community, marine
employment

Ford Employment New policy

Estates Regeneration Residential Ongoing

Nursling area Employment Part of wider Adanac

Park allocation in Test
Valley

Test Lane South Industrial / Warehouse Continue existing policy

University of Education Continue existing policy
Southampton
Other key housing sites Residential Identified on map

RESOURCE/POLICY/FINANCIAL/LEGAL IMPLICATIONS:

9.

10.

There is a statutory requirement to keep the Local Plan up to date. It will form
part of the Council’s policy framework. The estimated timescale below is
based on the current Planning Policy staff and budget levels. It is designed to
ensure the timely preparation of the Plan and that evidence does not become
out of date. It assumes that the other demands on the team’s time do not
increase, and there are no major external changes (eg in Government policy).

In broad terms the policy approach set out above is required to meet
Government, PUSH and Council policies. However, there will be detailed
options for specific policies.

The timetable for the preparation of the Local Plan must be published. The
Plan will provide a 20 year framework and have a significant impact on
development values and the environment. Therefore, with the statutory and
policy requirements for evidence preparation, consultation and examination, it
will take 4 years to adopt the Plan.

Date Public Consultation Stage Level of Council
decision

June / July 2015 ‘Broad Brush’ Issues and Delegated *
Options

June / July 2016 Draft Plan Delegated *

Sept / Oct 2017 Submission Plan Cabinet **

May 2018 Examination -

November 2018 Adoption Council

* — Head of Service in consultation with Cabinet Member (Leader)

** — The Submission Plan approved by the Cabinet is the last stage at which
major changes can be made by the City Council. Legally the Council must
incorporate the Examination Inspector’'s main changes if it wishes to adopt

the plan. Page 8



KEY DECISION? No

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED: All

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Appendices

1. None

Documents In Members’ Rooms

1. None

Equality Impact Assessment

Do the implications/subject of the report require an Equality Impact Not now
Assessment (EIA) to be carried out

Other Background Documents

Equality Impact Assessment and Other Background documents available for
inspection at:

Title of Background Paper(s) Relevant Paragraph of the Access to Information
Procedure Rules / Schedule 12A allowing
document to be Exempt/Confidential (if applicable)

1. None

Page 9




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Agenda Iltem 8

DECISION-MAKER: OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE
SUBJECT: THORNHILL DISTRICT HEATING SCHEME
DATE OF DECISION: 11™ DECEMBER 2014
REPORT OF: ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE
CONTACT DETAILS
AUTHOR: Name: Mark Pirnie Tel: 023 8083 3886

E-mail: Mark.pirnie@southampton.gov.uk

Director Name: | Suki Sitaram Tel: | 023 8083 2060
E-mail: | Suki.sitaram@southampton.gov.uk

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY
None

BRIEF SUMMARY

The Chair of the Committee has requested that the Overview and Scrutiny
Management Committee (OSMC) have an opportunity to discuss with the Cabinet
Member for Housing and Sustainability the Thornhill District Heating Scheme
following the agreement by Council, on 19" November 2014, to approve the next
phase of the development activity.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

(1) That the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee discuss the
Thornhill District Heating Scheme with the Cabinet Member for
Housing and Sustainability.

REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS

1. At the request of the Chair of the Committee.
ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED
2. None

DETAIL (Including consultation carried out)

3. At the 19 November 2014 meeting Council discussed the Thornhill District
Heating Scheme and approved the next phase of the development activity
which will conclude negotiation of a ‘best value’ contract, with the preferred
supply chain partner for the Design, Build and operate of the DH scheme
over a 30 year period.

4. The report presented to Council on 19 November 2014 is attached as
Appendix 1.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
Capital/Revenue

5. The details are outlined in the Council report attached as Appendix 1.

Page 11



Property/Other

6.

The details are outlined in the Council report attached as Appendix 1.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
Statutory power to undertake proposals in the report:

7.

The details are outlined in the Council report attached as Appendix 1.

Other Legal Implications:

8.

The details are outlined in the Council report attached as Appendix 1.

POLICY FRAMEWORK IMPLICATIONS

9.

The details are outlined in the Council report attached as Appendix 1.

KEY DECISION? Yes

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED: Bitterne

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Appendices

1.

Thornhill District Heating Scheme — 19 November 2014 Council Report plus
Appendices 1 and 2

Documents In Members’ Rooms

1.

None

Equality Impact Assessment

Do the implications/subject of the report require an Equality Impact Yes

Assessment (EIA) to be carried out.

Other Background Documents

Equality Impact Assessment and Other Background documents available for
inspection at:

Title of Background Paper(s) Relevant Paragraph of the Access to

Information Procedure Rules / Schedule
12A allowing document to be
Exempt/Confidential (if applicable)

None

Page 12




ARG3 AN 8

| DECISION-MAKER: | COUNCIL

| SUBJECT: T THORNHILL DISTRICT HEATING SCHEME
 DATE OF DECISION: | 19 NOVEMBER 2014

"REPORT OF: | CABINET MEMBER FOR HOUSING AND |

SUSTAINABILITY
CONTACT DETAILS

3

AUTHOR: | Name: | Nick Cross | Tel: | 023 8083 2241 |

E E-mail: Nick.Cross@southampton.gov.uk

Director ' Name: | Stuart Love | Tel: | 023 8091 7713

! E-mail:i Stuart.L ove@southampton.gov.uk

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY

éNone
BRIEF SUMMARY

The City Council Strategy 2014-17 makes key commitments to our residents,
“Southampton — city of growth and opportunity, where everyone thrives” including
aspirations for: Jobs for local people; Prevention and Early Intervention; and Good Quality
and Affordable Housing. This report outlines detailed proposals for the development and
implementation of a significant investment project in Thornhill which will:

e Improve the quality of over 900 homes through the provision of a new, efficient and
controllable heating and provide external cladding to over 400 of those properties
which are some of the hardest to heat in the city;

s Tackle the fuel poverty suffered by households in one of the most deprived wards
within Southampton by giving residents more control over the cost they pay to heat
their homes;

o Improve the health and wellbeing of over 900 families by improving their thermal
comfort and reducing damp, mould and condensation which are all recognised to
have long term impacts on health; and

e Deliver opportunities for development of skills, training and employment in the local

In November 2013 the Council approved the principle of a scheme within Thornhill for
heating and insulation improvements. During the past 12 months the Council has
continued to qualify the economic and operational options for a District Heating (DH)
scheme for the Thornhill Estate.

The original ECO initiative was principally focused on the deployment of insulation
measures across the city’s housing stock. This was principally driven by the fact that the
contribution of grant funding, that was available at that time, would provide for the majority
of the insulation deployment costs and thus minimal investment from SCC. There was still
an interest in deploying a District Heating scheme but this was as a secondary measure
compared with the scale of the insulation works.

The changes in ECO funding at the end of 2013 had a major impact on the proposed

project structure. The funding available for insulation measures reduced to a fraction of

that which had previously been available. In parallel there was however a change in the

ECO funding mandate, that would pro%@ig@gHeaﬁng as a primary funding measure.
e



This change saw a renewed interest from the 6 energy utility companies to provide
meaningful investment in schemes such as these.

In November 2013 the Council approved the funding necessary to qualify the potential
viability of a District Heating scheme for the Thornhill estate and to identify a preferred
Delivery Partner (refer to Council Paper dated 20th November 2013). The scheme would
be procured via the ECO Framework contract that was subsequently secured by Mitie
Property Services in late November 2013.

The Council appointed Utilyx, Mitie’s in-house energy specialist, to lead the combined
Project Team and to undertake the assessment process that would focus on the
qualification of the following key issues:

e Confirm which of the 6 energy utility companies, and their supply partners, would be
able to bring the Thornhill project the greatest level of investment and delivery
expertise;

» Identify what would be the most appropriate scheme configuration to bring SCC and
its tenants the maximum retumn;

« Identification of the capital and operational cost to deliver the identified scheme;
and

» |dentify a contract structure, for the delivery and operation of the scheme,that would
provide SCC with an appropriate level of risk transfer and return from the project.

This Project Team is now satisfied that it has sufficiently and successfully qualified each of
the above and is now able to now present a final case for the Council to review and
approve. This-paper sets out the primary components of this case and how they were
determined.

The project qualification process was funded initially by the £194,000.00 investment that
was committed to at the 20th November 2013 Council review. in addition the Project
Team applied for, and successfully secured, further Heat Network Development Unit
(HNDU) grant funding of £215,000.00 to support the further development of the scheme.
The HNDU has been set up by DECC to promote the take up of Local Authority sponsored
DH networks across the UK.

Council is requested to approve the next phase of the development activity which will
conclude negotiation of a ‘best value’ contract, with the preferred supply chain partner for
the Design, Build and operate of the DH scheme over a 30 year period.

RECCMMENDATIONS:

(i) To increase the funding on the Thornhill District Energy Scheme line, in
the HRA Capital Programme, from £8,035,000 to £12,820,000 and to
change the title to the Thornhili District Heating Scheme

(i) To remove the approved budgest of £6,712,000, for the Thornhill District
Energy Scheme, from the General Fund capital programme
(i) To delegate authority to the Director Place, after consultation with the

Chief Financial Officer, to accept an ECO funding grant of £4,190,000 to
part fund the scheme

(iv) To approve, in accordance with Financial Procedure Rules, capital
expenditure of £12,820,000, phased £300,000 in 2014/15, £9,365,000 in
2015/16 £2,245,000 in 2016/17 and £910,000 in 2017/18,0n the
Thornhill District Heating Scheme

(v) To approve, in accordance with Financial Procedure Rules, capital
expenditure of £1,200,000 phased £100,000 in 2015/16, £700,000 in
2016/17 and £4 e iR@S17/18, on works around the 3 Thornhill

age 14



(vii)

tower blocks, provision for which exists in the unapproved Future
Decent Neighbourhood Schemes line in the HRA Capital Programme.

To delegate authority to the Director Place, after consultation with the
Head of Legal and Democratic Services to enter into negotiations with
the preferred Delivery Partner to design and build a suitable scheme
that represents the best value for the residents of Thornhill, and for the
Council

To delegate authority to the Head of Legal and Democratic Services to
agree and sign the relevant contracts and; to delegate authority to the
Director Place, after consultation with the Head of Legal and Democratic
Services to take any other action necessary to implement and operate
the scheme

REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS

1

This is a significant opportunity to provide a new flexible and efficient heating and
hot water system to one of the Council’s large housing areas of the City and in
doing so to meet a number of the Council's key strategic objectives as follows:

Provide support to residents with the aim of responding to fuel cost rises
and tackling fuel poverty;

Improve insulation and heating to improve the quality of its housing stock;
Reduce carbon emissions and contribute to a more sustainable city; and

Promote job creation and retention in Southampton to support the city’s
economic development.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED

2.

None.

DETAIL (Including consultation carried out)

3.

The Council wishes to address the continuing rise in energy bills affecting its

tenants and leaseholders in the City. A large proportion of the Council housing

stock in the City has heating systems that are inefficient, costly to run and result in
relatively high Carbon emissions.

The Thornhill area of the City has been identified as the best starting point for
developing a DH scheme, and other energy efficiency measures, for the following

reasons.

The Thornhill area’s deprivation classification allows it preferential ECO
funding qualification, within the current programme criteria that is set out by
DECC. This change in status means the utility companies are further
motivated to participate as it contributes to one of their key ECO mandates.

The majority of the properties are electrically heated and a number are of
‘non-traditional’ construction meaning they are in need of external insulation
measures. This backdrop means that the deployment of a District Heating
and insulation scheme will contribute to the highest levels of CO2 savings
which is the principle measure by which ECO funding values are calculated.

There are 3 tower blocks and a large number of walk-up blocks within the
identified first phase (Phase 1) of the scheme. The close proximity and
higher density of the properties means for shorter pipework routes and
greatly aids the cost viability of the project.

The initial phase (phase 1) will extend to 904 dwellings however, within the
same area, there are a%agbbﬂ‘lﬁgotential additional future connections
age



including a further 450 housing units, schools, and the Antelope Retall
Park, providing for further potential financial benefits to energy consumers
and the Council. The extra dwellings would constitute a subsequent
phase/s of the scheme which is not part of the detailed financial appraisal
at this time. It should however be noted that the capacity of the distribution
pipework has been sized such as to be able to support an expansion of the
network from day one and extend to further dwellings in time.

ECO Funding

5,

~l

A principle part of the project qualification process was to determine what ECO
funding may be availabie for the scheme, post the funding changes in late 2013.
To achieve this qualification a Consultation Process was run whereby each of the
6 energy utility companies was invited to put forward their proposed funding offer
along with the mechanics by which this could be secured, pre-project completion.
The participants were also asked to present the operational value that their
proposed engagement might bring SCC beyond the above. This was to include
delivery experience, scheme variations and expected programme.

The Consultation Process identified a preferred bidder in the form of a partnership
between npower and Vital Energi. npower/Vital were able to demonstrate a proven
track record for developing similar schemes and a logical and inclusive
commitment to working with SCC to finalise an offer.

SCC and Mitie/Utilyx have continued to work with npower and Vital through 2014

1o finalise the scope of the scheme and to validate their offer to deliver and operate

the assets for an extended peried.

The initial (phase 1) Scheme

8.

A study has been undertaken to identify the phase 1 property list. This has
combined surveying the individual property types and the verification of DH
pipework route. A similar study has been completed to identify the configuration
and capacities for the Energy Centre. This work has allowed an assessment to be
completed of the amount of CO2 that will be displaced by the scheme and the
capital cost to build the infrastructure.

A detailed performance model has been developed, that has taken the outputs
from the survey work, to identify the optimum initial scheme. This is as follows:

e 904 properties to be connected to the network (694 electrically heated and
210 iocal gas boilers) across 54 housing blocks;

e Creation of a centralised Energy Centre on a portion of the land currently
owned by the Council on vacant land at the oid Eastpoint site;

e The DH scheme, on average, will provide-a circa 20% reduction on
tenants’ current heating costs at the commencement of the scheme with
significant opportunities for price rises to remain lower than national
energy price inflation;

e Heat will be generated by a lead 990kW wood chip boiler that will consume
an estimated 3700 tonnes of locally sourced fuel per year;

e The Energy Centre will have 3 additional conventional 2mW Gas boilers
that will provide top-up heat supply capacity and resilience to the biomass
boiler;

o A 200m3 buffer vessel will be installed within the Energy Centre to ensure
sufficient capacity at peak demand times and to optimise the use of the

biomass boiler syspﬁrge 210
Page 16



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

e The pipework network will extend for over 3,800 metres and will connect to
a network of risers and radial connections in each of the blocks;

o Pre-payment heat meters will be included in all of the dwellings which will
give tenants direct control of their system; and

e The scheme will provide a saving of over 2,800 tonnes of CO2 per annum
(84,000 tonnes during the term of the agreement) compared with current
system. This is the equivalent to the output of about 470 average family
cars each year.

It was previously intended to deploy a local electrical generation capability (CHP)
however the design development assessment work has confirmed that this would
not provide a secure economic retumn to the General Fund for the scheme. For
this reason the recommendation te remove the General Fund budget line has
been included.

The scheme will be designed and operated such that it will be entitled to receive
an incentive from the government via the Renewable Heat Incentive programme
(RHI). The RHI is paid on a p/kWh basis from the useful heat produced by the
renewable wood chip boiler technology and is provided for the 20 years and
adjusted for indexation (RPI) annually. The RHI provides a material contribution
of circa £148,000 per annum to the project’'s economics over the term.

In addition to the deployment of the DH scheme the Council will also be
undertaking some further insulation measures to properties within the overall
scheme which are of ‘non-traditional’ construction. These works are to include the
deployment of External Wall Insulation (EWI) to each of the three tower blocks
and to nine of the walk-up blocks. These blocks are the only ones in the scheme
with full electric heating and have not had any insulaticn measures deployed and
their inclusion in the overall project will maximise the amount of ECO funding that
will be available and, for the tower blocks, provide some urgently needed external
repair measures

The insulation works will be completed within the main project window so that
cost economies can be achieved by using a mobilised workforce, its management
team and re-use of access equipment. This also ensures that the design of the
replacement DH heating scheme can be designed to the new improved levels of
insulation ensuring optimum sizing of the infrastructure. This project will allow for
new windows and roofs to all 12 buildings and stone fibre external wall insulation
which is.then rendered in a coloured silicone based top coat. Full detailed costing
for this part of the project has also been undertaken and will provide for a further
investment of £7m. Funding is already approved and available within the HRA
Capital programme for these works and will be aligned to the timescales of the
project.

Further, under the New Deal for Communities funding that Thornhill received a
significant urban design project was undertaken called the Better
Neighbourhoods project. This made significant changes to many of the public
realm and open spaces around the estate and was the forerunner of the current
Decent Neighbourhoods programme. However the areas around the three tower
blocks in Thornhill were not included in the original scheme. The District Heating
and External cladding around these tower blocks will fundamentally change the
visual appearance of the buildings and have an impact on the hard surfaces
around the blocks. It is therefore proposed that funding is allocated from the
Future Decent Neighbourhoods unallocated capital programme in the HRA
business plan of £1.2m to allqyég@ gopvprehensive redesign and improvement

Page 17



of the space around the towers in partnership with the local residents. This will
ensure that a significant legacy is left for the residents on completion of the
overall project and this public realm is brought up to the consisient standard of
other parts of the whole estate including the newly developed homes at Hinkler
Parade and the former St Colman'’s site in Lydgate Road.

Development Template

15.

16.

Although Thornhill is seen as the best choice for an initial DH scheme, it is
important to emphasise that this forms part of a much wider energy efficiency
programme in the Council’s housing stock.

The potential availability of Energy Company Obligation (ECO) funding allows the
Council to deliver measures across the housing stock to maximise this available
subsidy and improve the housing stock in the City. Whilst ECO funding has been
reduced funding is currently available to provide a material contribution of capital
funding to the project. However due to the overall reduction in funding access to
these funds is very competitive and as such therefore it is important to be able to
agree the project as soon as possible so as to risk prevent losing the funding
available. By bringing this project for approval at this time and by having an
agreed deployment model with a nominated ECO funding partnership such as
npower and Vital the Council will ensure that subsequent initiatives will be faster
and cheaper to deploy and represent even greater value to SCC and its tenants.

Project Timescales

17.

18.

g

20.

21.

Subject to the appropriate approval from Council it is the intent to negotiate and
finalise the respective supply chain contracts during a time period from the end of
November 2014 and through to the end of January 2015. In parallel, the DH and
Insulatien work designs will continue and planning applications will be submitted
for both activities. It is expected that the EWI measures will be approved in mid-
January 2015 and that construction works on this element will commence in
February 2015. It is anticipated that the contracts for the DH works may be
completed and signed at the end of January 2015 but they will still be subject to
securing the appropriate planning approvals and operating permits. This is
expected to be conciuded by early May 2015.

It is forecast that the DH network will be brought into operation in a phased
approach. The initial heating change-over will commence towards the end of Q1
2016 with a full deployment by the end of summer 2016.

The EWI works will be coordinated around the DH works and will all be completed
within the overall project window.

The Decent Neighbourhoods work will follow the completion of the DH and
cladding with a view to commencing autumn 2016.

A detailed project programme for the DH scheme has been developed.

Take-up and ongoing Service Provision

22.

23.

All tenants will be required to take the replacement heating system being
provided by the Council as a landlord’s fixture

Of the 904 dwellings 210 have existing gas boilers and these tenants will have
this system replaced by the DH scheme. Based on feasibility work these
residents will have lower fuel bills, initially, and also into future. As existing
pipework and radiators will be retained in the gas properties there will be minimal

disruption to these residents from the switch over
Page 212

age 18



24.

25,

26.

27

28.

29.

Electrically heated homes will require the installation of radiators and heating
pipes along with a Heat Interface Unit (HIU) which is a local heat exchanger of
approximately the same size as a gas boiler.

Works to both the electrical and gas properties will provide savings to the long
term HRA business plan through the reduction is ongoing servicing and boiler or
heating replacements. This is modelled in the Resources section later in the
report

In addition to the 904 tenant dwellings there is also an additional 72 leaseholders
who exist within the targeted blocks, who could also be included. The Council will
develop a Heat Supply Agreement with a costing structure for those who are
interested in connecting to the scheme.

The Council will need to operate the scheme in balance and it will need to set its
charges to a minimum required to fully recover its costs. For example, if costs
increase, charges to tenants would also need to increase accordingly to reflect
this. It should be noted, however, that due to the increased efficiencies of district
heating over individual systems and the ability for the Council to negotiate
commercial rates for fuel, the cost for tenants for heating are likely to remain
lower than the price individual domestic customers could negotiate for gas or
electricity.

This charging policy will be an important part of the future management of the
scheme. Tenants on the scheme will no longer have the ability to go elsewhere
for their energy so the Council must endeavour to ensure that charges to tenants
and leasehoiders are kept below other domestic alternatives. Further details of
arrangements will be developed in cenjunction with the operation and
maintenance options for the scheme to be determined during the next 2 — 3
months.

The table below shows a comparison of heating costs the tenants can expect in
year one of the proposed scheme compared to their projected heating costs
under their existing arrangements:

Table 1
Currents Source Projected Cost Per Annum Projected Cost Per
of Heating Under the Existing Annum Under the
Arrangements Preposed Scheme
Electric £1,197 £931
Gas Boiler £1,045 831

Resident Engagement

30.

An early programme of limited resident engagement has taken place in the
Thornhill area based on the proposals to provide the new heating scheme and
insulation measures. This has included an introductory letter to all residents as
part of the original proposal in the area and attendance at the Thornhill Block Rep
Forum. The local housing office and the Block Rep Forum have been briefed on
the outline scheme proposals. A project team will be set up to oversee the
projects, support the communication and consultation elements and assist in the
delivery of the scheme in particular the complex access arrangements to
individual properties during the works. A further programme of engagement is
planned for appropriate stages in the development of the scheme and will include
detailed engagement with residents in the tower blocks on the Decent

Neighbourhoods project. Page 213
Page 19



31.

The initial response from tenants has been positive for the provision of lower cost
more controllable heat combined with insulation works to their properties. Due
attention will be paid to the Housing Act requirements on formal consuitations and
responding to any comments. Consultation will aiso take place with leaseholders
affected. Planning discussions will involve wider consultation with neighbours
and will be linked to the tenant liaison process.

Employment, Skills and Training

32.

This project represents a significant investment on behaif of the City Council in
Thornhill and the wider Southampton area. As part of the ECO Partnership Mitie
have made a commitment to supporting opportunities for skills, training and local
employment both direct and within their supply chain. As part of the formation of
the project an Employment and Skills plan will be developed to ensure the
greatest possible benefits are brought to the local economy.

Risk and Responsibilities

93

34.

39,

36.

During the project qualification process a number of contracting models were
considered that provide SCC with a range of risk and reward positions. These
include the following three principle options:

1. Own and operate - whereby SCC would benefit from the maximum return
from the assets but also carry the maximum performance and operational
risk.

Fuil ESCo — whereby SCC would transfer all operation risk to a third party
but would see a considerable dilution of overall project savings.

Hybrid (ESCo Lite) — SCC would retain specific project risks that it will be
able to sufficiently manage and transfer others to the delivery partner

M

W

Option 1 gives the Council the best potential return on capital and revenue
investment however requires the significant risk to the Council of having the
manage a complex set of plant and machinery which is an area where there is no
expertise. The Council wouid also be responsible for the replacement of the
assets in the energy centre at the end of their life and would require significant
contingencies or sinking fund arrangements.

Option 2 would see the council pass all risk to a third party but in return give up
any rights to income generation from the scheme and more importantly the
Council would give up the ability to control the prices charged to residents. This
wotuld leave the very real possibility of diminished savings to residents on their
heating bills undermining the key principles of the scheme.

Option 3 is the one that has been identified to offer SCC the most appropriate
level of risk and return and whilst the specific details will be agreed in the next
development and negotiapuggtadethe principle responsibilities, and owners, are

age 20



summarised in the table below.

w SCC Delivery
Partner

Planning

%

Design and Build v
Construction cost v
Take-up
Bad-debt/Continued service
Funding

Government incentives

N BN
s

Fuel supply/Managament

Operation and Maintenance

SRS S

Asset performance
optimisation

Asset replacement v

a7. SCC principle responsibilities would be a commitment to take the heat delivery for
the contract term, provide the necessary funding for the scheme and take the
primary fuel suppiy and price risk (Wood chip and Gas). In turn the delivery
partnerwould be incentivised through gain share arrangements to maximise the
ongoing efficiency of the plant and heat generation and seek opportunities for
expansion of the scheme to other third parties.

Contiract Structure

38. With the above in mind Bevan Brittan Solicitors have been commissioned to
develop a contract structure that will be able to bind the respective counter parties
into an agreement that will satisfy each entity and ensure that the risk allocation,
identified above, is appropriately allocated. The proposed structure is indicated
below.

P

Vital/nPower

<

39. Heads of terms have already been drawn up on this basis and are currently being
reviewed by the respective parties. Delegated Authority is being sought to allow
the Council to enter into the a? igPe|I§gal arrangements over the next two

a%% 1



months.

RESOURCE iMPLICATIONS.
Financial Appraisal

40.

41.

42.

43.

44,

45.

A detailed financial evaluation has been undertaken by Utilyx and has seen the
creation of a financial model for the Thornhill scheme that has enabled scenario
testing for different technologies and capacity configurations. The Utilyx study
was a key element of the feasibility process to determine the appropriate scheme
configuration and then to verify delivery costs and funding offers from both Vital
and npower.

Whilst npewer has completed calcuiations to determine the ECO funding that they
are able to provide the project, the actual offer can only be confirmed once the
final contracts are completed (target for end of January 2015). The principle risk
during this period would be one of regulatory or policy change, to the ECO
programme, between now and contract closure. Whilst National ECO Policy has
been the subject of a number of changes over the last 12 months in it not felt at
this time that a further change in the next couple of months is likely. However if
there was a change it may have an impact on the viability of the project. As part
of the contract npower have agreed an ECO offer of £4.19m and the final grant
received will be subject to verification of the final carbon displacement that the
scheme would bring, and this can only be undertaken upon completion of the
network. However under this proposed arrangements this risk would be assessed
and borne by Vitai_as part of the delivery structure outlined above.

Likewise the effer from Vital is still subject to some further specified conditions,

such as additional scheme modifications imposed by planning requirements and

unknown cost risks-asseciated with still to be competed ground surveys.
Contingencies are contained within the Capital cost to allow for most foreseeable
impacts.

Utilyx has undertaken a comparisen analysis of the capital cost structure and
Operation and Maintenance (O&M) fees to ensure that the project represents
value to SCC. This comparison has included a value engineering exercise on
the principle plant components to ensure appropriate and market based supply
rates. It is worth noting that there has been no prescribed change in the plant
schedule. Vital will be committing to the operating the plant at an agreed
performance level for the full term of the agreement and as such should be able
to nominate their equipment to effectively achieve this. The value analysis has
been completed specifically to verify costs. The model has been fully reviewed
by the Council’s finance team.

The ongoing O&M costs have been committed to by Vital. These include an
annual and fixed indexation rise through the term of the agreement. The only
variable on the O&M component is the cost of the primary fuel supply for both
Biomass and gas and which continues as SCC risk through the term. The wood
chip feed stock price has been benchmarked against known prevailing market
supply rates and indexation testing against that of the DECC forward energy
increase scenarios. Gas inflation has likewise been tested against the same DECC
curves. Prudent assessments have been made within the model to provide a level
of comfort in the sensitivity analysis undertaken

Construction funding will be provided by the HRA. There will be a draw down
schedule plotted across t estPup@ion phase of the project and factored into the

age 22



46.

HRA business plan. The maximum funding will be equivalent to that of the overall
capital value of the project because the ECO grant funding will not be paid to the

Councit until Practical Completion of the project. If the project construction phase

is extended beyond the current programme costs are likely to increase without a
corresponding increase in the grant making the cost to the Council greater and this
would have to be accommodated in the business plan.

The profile for the Capital spend, grant funding and the SCC revenue streams,
contained within the Utilyx financial model, have been fed into the HRA 30 Year
business plan approved by full Council on the 12th February 2014. The base case
uses the DECC September 2013 Reference Scenario to inflate the energy related
cost and income lines and assumed RPI increase of 2.5% for the other lines. The
base case assumes grant funding of £4.19M and a total capital cost of £12.820M.
Sensitivities have been run looking at lower levels of energy inflation and reduced
levels of consumption by residents. The results from the base case and sensitivity
analysis are detailed below.

Table 2
Scenario Increase / (Decrease) | Savings over 30 yeard
in HRA 30 Year to SCC Tenants
Business Plan
Surplus *

£000s £000s
Base case 9,822 12,399
Energy Inflation set at RPI (1795) 7,378
Energy Inflation set at RPI Plus 2% 2,144 10,864
5% Reduction in Consumptiomn by 8,847 10,397
Tenants
10% Reduction in Consumption by 7,865 9,931
Tenants
1 This represents the savings to the business plan due to reduced capital
replacements costs for existing boilers and heating systems and the RHI
paymentis.

Capital/Revenue

47.

48.

49.

There are sufficient funds available within the HRA Capital budget to meet the
requirements of the proposed scheme. The existing line in the HRA Capital
programme assumed that any ECO grant would be paid directly to the ECO
partner. The recommendations contained within this report assume that the full
Capital cost will be charged to the Council and the Council will then claim the
grant once the District heating Centre is performing within the prescribed
parameters. For this reason the recommendations to increase the provision within
the HRA capital programme and to delegate authority to accept the ECO grant

‘has been included within this report. The proposed scheme does not contain any

General Fund component so the recommendation to delete the Thornhill District
Energy Scheme budget line from the General Fund capital programme has been
included.

The grant funding is dependent on external wall insulation (EWI) being applied to
3 high rise tower blocks and 9 walk-up blocks. Budgetary provision to carry out
this work is already contained within the existing HRA capital programme.

The borrowing required to support the scheme can be contained within the HRA
borrowing cap, while also still providing adequate surpluses to tackle unforeseen
pressures in the HRA should they arise.

Pabe 24



50.

In summary the total cost and benefits of the scheme are as follows:

e Total cost of District Heating for 904 and cladding for 400 properiies =
£19.82m less grant of £4.19m = total net cost to SCC of £15.63m.

¢ Total savings to SCC capital programme and RHI Payments = £9.822m
e Total savings to tenants in reduced heating bills = £12.399m
e Overall financial benefit of scheme = £6.531m

Staffing resources

91

52.

53.

A key learning from the recent project undertaken at International Way is that the
Council needs to allocate a small team of dedicated staff to oversee the project.
This is-particuiarly important to ensure good communication with residents during
the course of the project which is likely to run for arcund 2 years. In Weston some
staff had hours allocated to support the project however this had to be augmented
by other staff through overtime and reprioritising at key parts of the project.

The Thornhill Project will be almost twice the size of International Way in terms of
numbers of properties and budget and therefore it is proposed that a small
dedicated project team is set up to oversee the various elements of the project for
both residents and contractors and in particular suppert and manage the
engagement, communication and access arrangements for the different phases of
work. It is therefore proposed that the following posts are established to oversee
the project:

e Project Manager {Technical) — to be the client technical project manager on
all property reiated aspects of the project and the lead conduit with the
contractor on the construction elements of the project.

» Project Manager (Heusing Services) — to manage the day to day co-
ordination of Housing resources to support the project and lead on tenant
consultation for all elements including the Decent Neighbourhoods project.

e Project Officer — to oversee and co-ordinate the access process for
residents; and
¢ Programme Support Officer — to provide local support to the project.

These roles will need to be funded from the project from January 2015 and it is
anticipated they will need to be in place until post completion in early 2017. The
cost is anticipated to be in the region of £140.000 per annum and will be part of the
capital cost of deliver the scheme.

Property/Other

54.

The provision of ECO funding and Council capital funding will significantly improve
the standard of the relevant housirg stock in the Thornhill estate, reduce fuel
poverty and improve the health and well-being of tenants.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
Statutory power to undertake proposals in the report:

29,

Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 permits the Council to do anything that any
other person or private body could do (the ‘General Power of Competence’)
subject to complying with any other statutory requirements such as the Housing
Act 1985. The use of the pia|® subject to a number of pre and post

age 24



commencement limitations, none of which are considered to apply in this case.

56. The Housing Acts 1985 gives the councii the powers to undertake these changes.
Under s105 of the Housing Act 1985 the Council is permitted to introduce
changes to the management of the housing service following a period of
consultation with residents. Where Leaseholders may be affected by any
changes the Council will be required to undertake consultation under the
Commonhold and Leasehold Reform Act 2002. A consultation plan will be
developed alongside the further development of the proposal.

Other Legal Implications:

87, The Thornhill DH project will be delivered in accordance with Finance and
Contract procedure Rules and any procurement and subsequent delivery of the
project will be subject to compliance with the requirements of the Equalities Act
2010, in particular the Public Sector Equality Duty and having regard to the need
to reduce crime and disorder in accordance with S.17 of the Crime & Disorder

Act 1998
POLICY FRAMEWORK IMPLICATIONS
B As mentioned in the main body of the report the delivery of a District Heating

scheme in Thornhill satisfies a number of Council policies and key objectives,
which are inciuded in the provisions of the Southampton Connect Plan, and the
Council's housing and property strategies.

64. The Council anproved the development of a Strategic Energy Action Plan (SEAP)
in December 2012 as a response to the priority issues of energy cost, energy
security and CO2 reduction, as well as other key priorities such as jobs and
economic growth. One of the main SEAP project streams is to secure Energy
Company Obligatiorr (ECO) funding which is currently available from the energy
utilities to support the delivery of insulation and to fully or partly fund new heating
installations in selected Council owned housing areas of the City.

60. In March of 2013 DECC published its strategy for heat, which sets out a
framework for delivery which accords with the proposals outlined in this report: A
link to the strategy Low Carbon Heating in the UK. is provided below:

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment data/file/190
149/16 04-DECC-The Future of Heating Accessible-10.pdf

KEY DECISION? Yes
WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED: Bitterne

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Pibe 25




Appendices

i Offer Letter from Vital Energi
2, Offer Letter from npower
Documents In Members’ Rooms

1. None

Equality Impact Assessment

Do the implications/subject of the report require an Equality Impact Yes
Assessment (EIA) to be carried out.

Other Background Documents

Equality Impact Assessment and Other Background documents available for
inspection at:

Title of Background Paper(s) Retevant Paragraph of the Access to
Information Procedure Rules / Schedule
12A allowing document to be
Exempt/Confidential (if applicable)

1, None.

Page 220
age 26



Agenda ltem 14
MddA L

ENERGI

Century House, Roman Road
Blackburn, Lancashire

United Kingdom, BB1 2LD
Tel: +44 {0)1254 296000

Fax: +44 (0)1254 296040
Email: sales@vitalenergi.co.uk

Web: www.vitalenergi.co.uk

Head of Housing Services
Southampton City Council
Ground Floor West Wing
Civic Centre
Southampton

SO14 70LY

FAOQO: Nick Cross
Date: 2710/14

Our ref: VQ13335

Dear Sirs,
Re: Thornhill Community Heating Network

We are pleased to provide our propesal for the design, build, operation and maintenance of a new biomass and natural
gas fired community heating network for the Thornhill community in Southampton, as follows:

1. Consortium
This propesal should be read in conjunction witiv proposais provided separately by our consortium partners: -

s MITIE Property Services, who will be undertaking the internal heating system instailations or heating
system modifications to serve 904 properties. For clarity the price for these MITIE Property Services
heating system works have been included within this proposal letter.

s nPower who will be providing ECO funding for the project and will also provide certain sub-contractor /
supplier services, working as a sub-contracior to MITIE Property Services or Vital Energi. For clarity the
price for works to be undertaken by nPower have been inciuded within this proposal letter, but the ECO
contribution towards the project has not been shown in this proposal letter.

2. Scope
The scope of our proposal includes: -

> Design, supply, installation and commissioning of a new energy centre building including foundations,
building, roadways, and boundary fencing, all on the ploi of-land adjacent to the Eastpoint Centre,
Bursledon Road, Thornhill, Southampton

> Design, supply, instailation and commissioning of an energy centre including 1 No wood chip fired
hiomass boiler rated at 990kW, 3 No gas fired boilers rated at 2MW, 2-No 100m” thermal stores, building
management system, circulation pumps, pressurisation unit, flues and chimney, associated mechanicai
and electrical works

>  Design, supply, installation and commissioning of an underground heating network, consisting of pre-
insulated pipework to connect to 54 No apartment blocks

>  Design, supply, installation and commissioning of primary heat substations for the P1 blocks only

> Design, supply, installation and commissioning of riser and lateral pipework to connect to serve 904
properties

> Internal heating systems within the properties will be designed by Vital Energi, but installed and
commissioned by MITIE Property Services, to serve 904 properties

S S R I“fr““ 10of5
@ Chpo - @ I Q‘ Iﬁ:‘ P&%ee% Registered in Ergland Mo, 4050180



VITAL

ENERGI

> Supply of heat interface units with integral heat meter for installation by MITIE Property Services, but
commissioning onto the network by Vital Energi
> Supply, installation and commissioning of Tenant pre-payment systems
>  Operation and maintenance services for a 30 year term: -
o Including operation, planned and reactive maintenance, life cycle repairs and replacements,
metering and billing
o Our operation and maintenance scope includes the energy centre, the heat networl, risers and
laterals up to and including the HIUs and heat metering systems
o We have excluded maintenance of the heating systems within the flats

3. Charges

Our charges wili be: -
> For the design, supply, installation and commissioning works detailed above £12,459,485 (twelve miltion,
four hundred and fitty nine thousand, four hundred and sixty five pounds)
>  For operation and maintenance services £310,363 per year {three hundred and ten thousand three
hundred and sixty three pounds)

Our charge for design, supply, installation and commissioning works includes some provisional sums, as detailed
in Appendix 1.

The above charges will be subject to VAT at the applicable rate.
4. Basis of Proposal

Our proposal is submitted as a firm offer, however due to programme consiraints we have been unable to
complete all of the design activities necessary to firm up-ail-elements of our proposal. Where necessary we have
allowed our estimate of likely cost and have shown these as provisional sums within our chiarges above, and will
firm up these up fully during the next development stages. These inciude:
>  Detailed site invesiigation to be undertaken, whictrcould impact: -
o Building layout, orientation and foundation design for the energy centre
o Routing for the underground heat network
o Disposal of any contaminated excavations
>  Planning application and air dispersion modeling to be submitted, which could impact:
o  Building design and architectural finish
o  Chimney height
> Utility connection applications to be submitted, which could impact: -
o Cost for electricity, water, sewerage and gas connections to the Energy Centre
> lconic architectural features cr.specialist landscaping requirements
>  Local Highways particular costs for 278 requirements (traffic lights/ signaling etc.)

5. Terms and Conditions

Our offer is subject to contract, and has been based on our understanding of the: -

>  Proposed coniractual structure, as per our discussions with your colleague Colin Rowland, Luke Mann
from Utilyx and Bevan Britten

>  Works undertaken as per programme attached as Appendix 3, assuming that works are completed in an
uninterrupted period and based on a normal weekday working of 40 hours/week

>  Allocation of responsibilities and risks as shown in the risk matrix which we have shared with you
previously (via Utilyx), also attached for reference as Appendix 8

We have previously issued a draft project development agreement, and we assume that this will be executed to
form the basis for us to proceed with the further development works up to execution of formal design and build
and O&M contracts.

2of5

Registared in England No. 4050180

¢ EEEE



VITAL

ENERGiI

6. Supporiing Information

We have provided the following supperting information, which we hope you will accept is commercially sensitive.
In this respect, we trust that the following appendices will not be made available publically:
>  Appendix 1 — Capital cost breakdown
Appendix 2 — Operating cost breakdown
Appendix 3 — Indicative construciion programme
Appendix 4 — Community heating network drawing
Appendix 5 — Drawing of typical heating systems layout in properties
Appendix 6 — Energy centre block plan layout and location
Appendix 7 — Schedule of properties Included in this proposal
Appendix 8 — Risk matrix

VVVVVVYV

! hope that this decument provides all of the information that you need at this stage. We would welcome the opportunity to
meet with you to present our proposals. If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours faithfully

N. (7

5

Nick Gosling
Director of Energy Sirategy

M: 07887 415550
(@53 Luke Mann, Utilyx

Lee Elliott, MITIE Property Services
Nick Gardner, nPower

E— 3Jofb

© chpa © & Ragels o




VITAL

ENERGiI
Appendix 1 — Capital Cost Breakdown
COMMERCIALLY SENSITIVE INFORMATION
Item £
Excl VAT
1. Preliminaries and Design 988,321
2. Energy Centre Construction 771,863
3. Biomass Boiler System 398,498
4. Energy Centre Mechanical Works 688,121
5. Energy Centre Electrical Works 314,589
6. DH Distribution 2,838,602
7. HiUs to Dwellings 1,180,060
8. Tenant Pre-Payment system 562,695
9. Heat Sub Stations to 3 No Tower Blocks 67,355
10. Provisiqnal Sums 265,000
11.Temporary Boiler 60,000
12. Risers and Laterals 1,672,407
13. Internal Heating Systems 2,651,954
Grand Total 12,459,465
Provisional Sums (included in table above)
ltem £
ExcEYAT
1. Incoming gas supply 50,000
2. Incoming mains cold water supply 20,000
3. Incoming electricity supply 100,000
4. Incoming communications 5,000
5. Drainage 15,000
6. Architectural enhancement 75,000
Grand Total 265,000
Appendix Z — Cperating Cost Breakdown
COMMERCIALLY SENSITIVE INFORMATION
Item £/Year
Excl-VAT
1. Management and Supervision 5,769
2. Operations 46,886
3. Energy Centre Maintenance 55,750
4. Heat Network Maintenance 17,071
5. HIU, Heat Meter and Pre-Payment System O&M 114,769
6. Life-cycle replacements 70,119
Grand Total 310,363
40of 5

@ chpo é BMTRADA @ é BMTRADA :EMM 1;%5:

Page 224

age 30

Registered in Engtand Mo 405G150¢



VITAL

ENERGI

Appendix 3 — Construction Programme
COMMERCIALLY SENSITIVE INFORMATION

Please refer to separate attachment reference: VE Thornhill Proposal Gct 2014 — Appendix 3 - Programme

Appendix 4 - Community Heating Network Drawing
COMMERCIALLY SENSITIVE INFORMATION

Please refer to separate attachment reference: VE Thornhiii Proposal Oct 2014 —Appendix 4 — DH Network Drawing

Appendix 5 — Drawing of typical heating Systems layout in properties
COMMERCIALLY SENSITIVE INFORMATION

Please refer to separate attachments reference: VE Thornhill Proposal Oct 2014 —Appendix 5.1 to 5.11, which provide
schematics and layout drawing for the heating systems in the typical block constructions

Appendix 6 — Energy centre block plan layout and location
COMMERCIALLY SENSITIVE INFORMATION

Please refer to separate attachment reference: VE Thornhill Proposal Oct 2014 —Appendix 6 — Energy Centre Drawing

Appendix 7 — Schedule of Properties-Inciuded
COMMERCIALLY SENSITIVE INFORMATION

Please refer to separate attachment reference: VE Thornhill Proposal Oct 2014 —Appendix 7 — Schedule of Properties
Included

Appendix 8 — Proposed Risk Matrix
COMMERCIALLY SENSITIVE INFORMATION

Please refer to separate attachment reference: VE Thornhill Proposal Oct 2014 —Appendix 8 — Risk Matrix

) i v | 50f5
@ ChpQ éw:-p:.:u iwr,-atm AMTRADA s uﬁ’r i F&%ee¥15 Registersd in Engiard Ne, 4050183



This page is intentionaliy left blank

Page 32



Agenda ltem 14

_ Appendix 2
(rower)
Nick Cross Nick Gardner
Head of Housing Services npower Energy Services
Southampton City Council Eimdon Suite,
Ground Floor West Wing 2 Princes Way,
Civic Centre Solihuli,
Southampton West Midlands B91 3ES
SO147LY Phone 07920 833041

E-Mail nick.gardner@npower.com

27 October 2014

Thornhill - Community Heating Scheme

Dear Nick,

As a result of developing the proposed community heating project at Thornhill, Southampton
npower would be looking to provide funding to this scheme as part of its CSCO (Carbon Savings
Community Obligation part of the Energy Company Obiligaticn).

The projects lifetime carbon savings (and hence CSCO funding) have been determined using detailed
SAP analysis. Based upon this analysis npower is able to confirm that for the proposed community
heating project at Thornhill it would be be looking to provide CSCO funding of up to £4,19m.

The funding offer is subject to the final confirmation of the projects specification and that the
anticipated level of carbon emissions reduction is achieved and approved by Ofgem.

It should be noted that this CSCO funding offer is conditional on external wall insulation (EWI)
measures being completed at the following properties:
I. EWI measures to the 3 high rise (P1) developments at Meredith, Hightown and Dumbleton
Towers — (a total of 305 flats); and
Il. EWI measures to 9 of the P3 properties currently not insulated - 118 to 138 Lydgate Road,
140 to 160 Lydgate Road, 162 to 182 Lydgate Road, 226 to 246 Lydgate Road, 280 to 300
Lydgate Road, 334 to 354 Lydgate Road, 1 to 21 Tunstall Road, 23 to 43 Tunstall Road and 45
to 65 Tunstall Road - (a total of 99 flats)

We can also advise that our SAP analysis has been undertaken using SAP 2012 (this is a new Ofgem
requirement where all projects scheduled for completion after March 2015 are to be determined using
SAP/RASAP 2012 software).

Finally it should also be noted that Ofgem is currently consulting on the insulation conditionality
affecting district heating projects. One such outcome could have it that DECC/Ofgem may decide to

RWE npower

Registered office:
RWE Npower plc
Windmill Hill Business Park

P e Whitehill Way, Swindon
e Wiltshire SN5 6PB

An RWE company Wikt o 5962782



waive the insulation conditionality highlighted above — so improving the overall economics of this
project.

Yours Sincerely

Nick Gardner

Energy Services

Palge 228
age 34



Agenda ltem 14
Appendix 3

‘.\. A '.
CITY COUNCIL »

The public sector Equality Duty (Section 149 of the Equality Act) requires public
bodies to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality
of opportunity, and foster good relations between different people carrying out their
activities.

The Equality Duty supports good decision making — it encourages public bodies to be
more efficient and effective by understanding how different people will be affected by
their activities, so that their policies and services are appropriate and accessible to all
and meet different people’s needs. The Council's Equality and Safety Impact
Assessment (ESIA) includes an assessment of the community safety impact
assessment to comply with section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act and will enable
the council to better understand the potential impact of the budget proposals and
consider mitigating action.

Name or Brief Thornhill District Heating Scheme
Description of

Proposal

Brief Service

Creation of a new District Heating Scheme in Thornhill

Profile providing heating and hot water to 904 properties across
(including 54 Housing blocks. 694 properties are currently
number of electrically heated which is expensive and uncontrollable.
customers) 400 ‘nen-traditional’ properties will also benefit from

external wall insulation, new windows and roofs to
improve the thermal performance of the buildings. The
public realm around the three tower blocks will also be
redesigned and improved to provide for enhanced and
useable public space to improve these neglected areas in
keeping with other projects already undertaken.

Total project budget will be approx. £21m of which-
£4.19m will be contributed through grant funding from the
Energy Company Obligation (ECO).

Summary of

e Improve the quality of over 900 homes through the

Impact and provision of a new, efficient and controllable heating
Issues and provide external cladding to over 400 of those
Potential properties which are some of the hardest to heat in the

Positive Impacts

city;

"Bige 35




e Tackle the fuel poverty suffered by households in one
of the most deprived wards within Southampton by
giving residents more control over the cost they pay to
heat their homes;

e Improve the health and wellbeing of over 900 families
by improving their thermal comfort and reducing damp,
mould and condensation which are all recognised to
have long term impacts on health; and

e Deliver opportunities for development of skills, training
and employment in the local area through our ECO

Partners supply chain and commitment to the local

economy.

Approved by Nick Cross, Head of Housing Services

Senior Manager

Signature e

Date 6 November 2014

Potential Impact

Age The scheme will include some
supported housing and general
needs flats occupied by
residents over 60 and it will
improve the ability for them to
have affordable and controllable
heating and hot water ensuring
their health and wellbeing is
supported. Keeping warm in
older age significantly reduces
the risk of CPD.

Palge 230
age 36



Disability There will significant building Safe systems of work and
work and pipe laying across the | Highways standards
estate which may present a applied to ensure
hazard to those with mobility trenches, holes and other
issues. hazards are appropriately

fenced off.
The public realm surround the
tower blocks will be improved
enhancing access to residents
with a disability to the public
space

Gender none

Reassignment

Marriage and | none

Civil
Partnership

Pregnancy

and Maternity

Some of the building work will
include activity that generates
dust.

Agreed access
arrangements with
residents to ensure
impacts are minimised to
all vulnerabie residents

Race none

Religion or none

Belief

Sex none

Sexual none

Orientation

Community The areas around the tower

Safety blocks will be improved to make
them more attractive and safer
places for residents.

Poverty Thornhill is one of the most SCC wili ensure that the
deprived wards in Southampton. | Operate and Maintain
Providing a cheaper and more contract for the heating
controllable heating and hot and hot water retains
water system to 904 properties | utility costs at below
will help reduce both fuel and those which a resident
child poverty giving residents could achieve
more disposable income for their | independently.
families.
£21m investment in the local An Employment and
area will support significant Skills plan will be
opportunities for training, skills developed to maximise
and employment for residents. the opportunities for local

residents.

Other Being harder to heat the 400

Significant properties of ‘non-traditional’

Impacts construction tend to suffer more

with damp, condensation and

"Pse’37




mould which are potentially
detrimental to health. The new
heating and insulation of these
properties should dramatically
reduce the incidents of such
issues occurring improving the
health of the residents.

There will be significant building
and construction work across
the estate for up to two years
which will be disruptive to
everyday life

Significant time will be
invested in community
consultation and
engagement throughout
the project and specific
resources are being
allocated from the Council
and the Contractor to
manage the access
processes needed during
the project with a view to
keeping the disruption to
the lowest levei possible.

Palge 232
age 3



Agenda ltem 9

DECISION-MAKER: OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE

SUBJECT: MONITORING SCRUTINY RECOMMENDATIONS TO
THE EXECUTIVE

DATE OF DECISION: 11™ DECEMBER 2014

REPORT OF: ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE

CONTACT DETAILS
AUTHOR: Name:  Mark Pirnie Tel: | 023 8083 3886
E-mail: mark.pirnie@southampton.gov.uk
Director Name: Suki Sitaram Tel: | 023 8083 2060

E-mail: Suki.sitaram@southampton.gov.uk

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY
None
BRIEF SUMMARY

This item enables the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee to monitor and
track progress on recommendations made to the Executive at previous meetings.

RECOMMENDATION:

(1) That the Committee considers the responses from Cabinet Members to
recommendations from previous meetings and provides feedback.

REASON FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS

1. To assist the Committee in assessing the impact and consequence of
recommendations made at previous meetings.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED
2. None.
DETAIL (Including consultation carried out)

3. Appendix 1 of the report sets out the recommendations made to Cabinet
Members at previous meetings of the Overview and Scrutiny Management
Committee. It also contains summaries of any action taken by Cabinet
Members in response to the recommendations.

4. The progress status for each recommendation is indicated and if the
Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee confirms acceptance of the
items marked as completed they will be removed from the list. In cases
where action on the recommendation is outstanding or the Committee does
not accept the matter has been adequately completed, it will be kept on the
list and reported back to the next meeting. It will remain on the list until such
time as the Committee accepts the recommendation as completed.

Rejected recommendations will only be removed from the list after being
reported to the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Page 39



Capital/Revenue

5. None.
Property/Other
6. None.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
Statutory power to undertake proposals in the report:

7. The duty to undertake overview and scrutiny is set out in Part 1A Section 9 of
the Local Government Act 2000.

Other Legal Implications:

8. None

POLICY FRAMEWORK IMPLICATIONS
9. None.

KEY DECISION? No

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED: None directly as a result of this report
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Appendices

1. Monitoring Scrutiny Recommendations —11" December 2014

Documents In Members’ Rooms

1. None

Equality Impact Assessment

Do the implications/subject of the report require an Equality Impact | No
Assessment (EIA) to be carried out.

Other Background Documents

Equality Impact Assessment and Other Background documents available for
inspection at:

Title of Background Paper(s) Relevant Paragraph of the Access to
Information Procedure Rules / Schedule
12A allowing document to be
Exempt/Confidential (if applicable)

1. None

Page 40




Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee: Holding the Executive to Account
Scrutiny Monitoring — 11" December 2014

APPENDIX 1

Date

Portfolio

Title

Action proposed

Action Taken

Progress Status

13/11/14

Environment
& Transport

Extension of the
Waste Disposal
Contract

1)

That a briefing note is circulated to
the OSMC outlining the material
difference the Council’s Ethical
Procurement Policy has made
since it was introduced.

Circulated to OSMC on 26/11/2014

Completed

13/11/14

| ebed

Resources &
Leisure

General Fund
Revenue Budget

That the Council’s spend on
consultants in 2014/15 is circulated
to the Committee.

Circulated to OSMC on 02/12/14

Completed

That a briefing note clarifying the
Council’s position regarding
highways expenditure is circulated
to the Committee.

Circulated to OSMC on 02/12/14

Completed

That officers clarify whether the
Streetlighting PFI contract has

required support from the Risk

Fund.

No additional support has been drawn from
the risk fund in year in 2013/14 or 2014/15 to
date.

Completed

That the Cabinet Member gives
consideration to the impact of the
proposed £1m reduction in agency
spend, overtime and vacancy
management and reflects whether
it should be located in the service
reduction column rather than the
efficiency column.

This item can be shown as a service
reduction in the February Budget Report

Completed

puaddy

13/11/14

Resources &
Leisure

Transformation of
the Southampton
Library Service

That the Cabinet Member gives
consideration to how the Estate
Regeneration Programme could be

The Library Service is keen to explore
partnership opportunities and this is
described in paragraph 35 of the cabinet

Completed

X1

v

6 Wal| epusby

¥




APPENDIX 1

Date Portfolio Title Action proposed Action Taken Progress Status
utilised to help support and report. This does refer to partnerships within
transform the library service. the city council which would include the
Estate Regeneration Programme.

2) That the Cabinet Member The recommendation was amended to read Completed
considers re-wording the that the consultation was seeking to secure
recommendations within the “views on any alternatives or expressions of
Cabinet report, removing reference | interest offered up by consultees, including
to a preferred option and but not limited to, those detailed in paragraph
broadening the approach to ensure | 35”.
that all options will be considered.

3) That the Cabinet Member Para 35 and Para 52.1 sets out the councils Completed
proactively considers opportunities | commitment to consulting with existing and
for shared services, collaboration potential partners and stakeholders. There
with other partners, and alternative | will be a comprehensive communication plan

my) delivery models when consulting on | to promote the consultation as widely as

8 the future of the Library Service. possible.

i If a decision is taken after the completion and

N evaluation of the public consultation to
progress with independent community
libraries then an open and transparent
process will be carried out which will publicly
invite expressions of interest.

4) That efforts are made to ensure The response to the above would also apply Completed
that potential alternative providers | to businesses.
of library services, including
businesses who could benefit from
the library footfall, are informed of
the Council’'s consultation process.

5) That the Cabinet Member reflects The questionnaire provides the opportunity to Completed
on how qualitative information will provide qualitative responses to open
be factored into the decision questions in addition there will be some
making process. targeted focus groups. There will also be two

drop in question and answer sessions at each
library during the consultation period attended




APPENDIX 1

Date

Portfolio

Title

Action proposed

Action Taken

Progress Status

by officers involved in the project.

13/11/14

oy abed

Communities

Safe City & Youth
Justice Strategies

1) That information is circulated to the
Committee identifying how
Southampton compares with
statistical neighbours with regards
to the percentage of young people
involved with the Youth Offending
Service who are NEET.

After the committee, the YOS Manager took
advice from the Youth Justice Board (YJB) for
England and Wales; discussing the request
with the YJB Local Partnership Delivery
Advisor and a board education lead.

YJB Perspective:

Comparison is very difficult across YOTs due
to the different measures used. The important
element of Education, Training, Employment
(ETE) now is the quality of assessment and
subsequent provision and understanding the
individual needs of those within the cohort.
The new Education Health and Care Plan
(EHCP) makes a strong point with the
requirement to assess needs more accurately
and ensure the relevant support is provided
formally.

Southampton Response:

The YOS Manager has identified a number of
YOTs as services where education, training
and employment strategies have been
assessed positively by Her Majesty’s
Inspectorate of Probation / the Youth Justice
Board. The recommendation is that the YOS
Manager reviews provision and support
arrangements in these areas as part of the
SYOS performance improvement work.
Findings will be reported to the YOS
Management Board.

2) That a list of Southampton based
organisations that received grant
funding from the PCC is circulated

Circulated to OSMC - 17/11/2014

Completed




APPENDIX 1

Date Portfolio Title Action proposed Action Taken Progress Status
to the Committee.
o
Q
«Q
(0]
N
N



	Agenda
	6 Minutes of the Previous Meeting (including matters arising)
	7 Local Plan Review
	8 Thornhill District Heating Scheme
	thornhill heating 11.12.14

	9 Monitoring Scrutiny Recommendations to the Executive
	Enc. 1 for Monitoring Scrutiny Recommendations to the Executive


